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FISH CREEK DRIVEWAY

COMMENTS ON ORIGINAL PHOTO

This is the south slope of Fish Creek
Ridge approximately 1 mile above the

Forest boundary. Ranger Thursby
says, to his personal knowledge, this
slope has not been grazed since 1941
except where the trail goes around
the lower edge. He does not think it

has been grazed since the Forest was

created. French Creek S&G.

1992 SITE EVALUATION

The mest obvious change is the
increase in willows along the stream
channel. The slope in the foreground
» has increased vegetation, primarily
shrubs. The 1958 photo does not
' indicate much bitterbrush.

In 1992, the stand is 60-40 percent
sagebrush and bitterbrush. The
gullies on the slope are not as
apparent, an indication that healing
is taking place. There are now a
number of beaver dams in the
stream.
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LITTLES CREEK
FERRON R.D.

COMMENTS ON ORIGINAL PHOTO

View of old JewkesVan Buren
sawmill site in the Littles Creek.

1992 SITE EVALUATION

Increased vegetative groundcover is
apparent with less rock showing on
the hill in the background. Gophers
are still operating on the flat. On the
left, aspen stands have come on the
flat.
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COMMENTS ON ORIGINAL PHOTO

No comments given.

2

1992 SITE EVALUATION
Since the original photo, Joe's Valley *
Dam has been completed. The flats
have had a considerable pinyon-
juniper invasion. Note the area
_around the Orange Olsen Guard
Station in the left center of the photo.
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A CHRONOLOGICAL SUMMARY -

of
SIGNIFICANT EVENTS

IN THE HISTORY, CREATION AND ADMINISTRATION

of the

MANTI-LA SAL NATIONAL FOREST
ESPECIALLY RELATED TO THE MANAGEMENT OF VEGETATION

1760 s

1776

Top of La Sal’sy 1969.

By this time, Spanish explorers had become the first Europeans to see
the area which, nearly 150 years later, would become the Manti-La Sal
National Forest. By 1765, Juan Maria de Rivera had penetrated to the
eastern front of the La Sal Mountains. During the next decade, Spanish
traders followed and extended Rivera's routes—most likely increasing other
traders’ awareness of the La Sal and Abajo Mountains. (Peterson 1975:6.)

Fathers Dominguez and Escalante, attempting to reach California, were af-
forded views of the east side of the La Sal Mountains. The expedition’s
map maker, Don Bernardo Miera y Pacheco, referred to many of the im-
portant landforms in eastern Utah and Colorado including the La Sal and
Abajo Mountains. Of the La Sals, Father Escalante wrote, “According to
what we are told, the Yutas [Utes] who live hereabouts get their salt [from
the nearby area)” Near Grand Junction, the group continued northwest to
the Uinta Basin and then west to the Strawberry Valley. The expedition
frequently lost track of their cattle in the tall grass of the Spanish Fork
Canyon. (Bolton 1950 as cited in Peterson 1975:7; Vaughn Francis' personal
communication with Andy Godfrey, Intermountain Regional Office, Public
Affairs, 1993

While Escalante and Dominguez did not reach California, their expedition
did much to open eastern Utah to exploration by others. In the decades
that followed, large caravans of traders leaving Santa Fe [sometimes
numbering as many as 300 men)] travelled the “Old Spanish Trail,” which
had been extended westward from Moab through the San Rafael Swell
toward Salina Canyon, allowing them views of portions of the Wasatch
Plateau, later to become the Manti National Forest. Some even may have
penetrated some of the Forest’s eastern canyons [Ferron, Muddy,
Quitchupah, Straight Canyon, Rock, and Huntington Creeks]. However, no
records have been found describing the Forest at that time. (Peterson
1975:6-9; Geary 1992:28.)

Explorer John C. Fremont called travelling between Tucker and Soldier
Summit “an open and easy pass” (Fremont 1844 as cited in Geary
1992:30.)

With his famous words, “This is the place] Brigham Young led a group of
Mormon settlers into the valley of the Great Salt Lake, proclaiming it as
their new home.
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1870-1890

Ferron Mountain, Wasatch Plateau, 1981.

In 1875, a member of the Hayden survey team wrote of the La Sal Moun-
tains: “If a wilderness be a region which has no place on the maps and no
sign of civilized habitation, then the Sierra La Sal is certainly a
wilderness” He saw no sign of any settlement nearer than 200 miles in
any direction. It was, he concluded “emphatically the terra incognita of the
country” (Peterson 1975:39.) However, this contradicts other information
that the country was something of a haven for cowboys and outlaws who
required a buffer from the establishment of communities in southeastern
Utah. (Peterson 1975:39.) !

Between 1870 and 1890, ranchers grazed their livestock in the Forest.
Several large cattle outfits including the La Sal, Pittsburg, Carlisle, the
LC, the Scorup Brothers and the Bluff Mormons ran cattle on the La Sals
and the Abajos. (Peterson 1975:79-100.)

In the 1870, it was stated that grass and forbs on Philadelphia and
Bluebell Flats in Ephraim Canyon were so high that cows were difficult to
see. (Nielson n.d. as cited in Haymond 1972:107, Mont Lewis’ personal com-
munication with Joel Frandsen, 1993.)

As arable land in the valleys was settled, there was a shift in the region’s
economic base. Many farmers, especially those in the Sanpete Valley turn-
ed to raising livestock. Within a few years, farming was supplemental to
the livestock industry. (Geary 1992:13)

In the late 1870's and early 1880's, settlements sprang up east of the
Wasatch Plateau. Many of these settlements, such as Castledale, Ferron and
Emery, were settled by Sanpete Valley pioneers. As the Castle Valley set-
tlements grew, their livestock herds joined the Sanpete Valley herds in
grazing the Wasatch Plateau’s seemingly inexhaustible summer pastures.

After 1880, sheep began to replace cattle. Geary (1992:15) notes that by
1880, the Plateau was “being seriously overgrazed ... [and] the damage
was intensified by the practice of setting brush fires. .. to make it easier
for the sheep to move around”

As the sheep business in Utah began to take hold, large bands of nomadic
sheep grazed on the Manti Division, mainly by out-of-state interests.

The Hole in the Rock Expedition led to the first European settlement of
southeastern Utah. The rugged San Juan region of Utah was, not surpris-
ingly, one of the last areas in the Intermountain West to be settled by the
Mormons. In the spring of 1879, 236 men, women and children under the
leadership of Silas S. Smith set out for southeastern Utah. After exploring
several routes, the groups final leg of the trip was across the canyons of
the Colorado River. Cutting, blasting and building trail through vertical
cliffs, the expedition reached the present site of Bluff on April 6, 1880¢
During the next decade, the towns of Monticello and Verdure were
established by Mormon settlers as part of a strong Mormon move to
reclaim the country from large expanding cattle outfits.
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In the 1880, gold and silver deposits were discovered along the San Juan
River and the La Sal and Abajo Mountains. Small settlements of miners
worked both placer and lode deposits in the mountain areas (Peterson
1975:27-28), probably stripping away native vegetation along short sections
of streams.

Upon completion of the Denver and Rio Grande and Sanpete Valley
Railroads in the 1880’s, railheads were established at the towns of Manti
and Colton. This profoundly impacted the vegetation of the Manti Division.
Sheep were shipped to Manti by rail from as far away as Oregon. They
were trailed onto the Forest where they drifted northward on the Plateau
during the summer and then were shipped from the railhead at Colton
[near the present junction of Highways 6 and 96] in the fall. Sheep from
Colorado also were trailed westward across eastern Utah to summer
pastures on the }’lateau.

To complete the railroads, timber was harvested for railroad ties. Timber
also was harvested for use as mine props in the Plateau’s expanding coal
mines. In Ephraim Canyon, “Every tree of red pine and black balsam big
enough to make a tie was taken” (Lauritz Nielson nd as cited in
Haymond 1972:105.) Haaser suggests that conifer species greater than 12
inches in diameter were removed from the Forest for railroad ties by the
early 1900's (Karl Haaser’'s personal communication, 1994). Other data (1915
Manti National Forest Timber Reconnaissance Atlas) indicate that several
small sawmills were cutting conifer species and transporting the majority
of the lumber by wagon to the Sanpete Valley.

Lauritz Neilsen recalls that in the mid-1880’s, it was possible to drive a
team and wagon across the creek in Ephraim Canyon. “There were no
steep, raw banks dropping into the creek” Only a few years later, he
remembered “looking through the aspen and there was not a green leaf or
sprig of any kind as high as the sheep could reach, and the ground was
absolutely bare. They ate everything that was green” (Neilsen 1953 as cited
in Geary 1992:16-17.) Just before the turn of the century, sheep populations
grazing the entire Wasatch Plateau peaked at somewhere between 800,000
and one-million head. (Antrei 1982:206 as cited in Geary 1992:16.)

Unrestricted overgrazing prompted one observer to write that between
1888 and 1905, “The Wasatch Range, from Thistle to Salina, was a vast
dust bed, grazed, trampled and burned to the utmost. ... These high
mountain pastures . .. received not only the most abuse, but have [taken]
longer in recovering from its effects” (Reynolds 1911 as cited in Keck
1972:15))

Between 1888 and 1910, serious floods were reported in Ephraim and
other canyons on the Sanpete Valley side of the Wasatch Plateau. Flooding
also was reported in Castle Valley on the eagt side of the Plateau.
Agricultural and business properties were destroyed and fish populations
in the mountain streams were decimated. By the end of 1901, the situation
in the Sanpete Valley was desperate. Livestock overgrazing was frequently
blamed for the disastrous flooding. (Keck 1972:15-16.)
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Blue Lake, 1991.

1890-1910

Sheep grazing, Wagon Road Ridge, 1969.




Wild flowers, Skyline Drive.

1901-1902

With passage of the General Provision Act in 1891, Congress authorized
the President to designate particular areas of forested public domain as
Forest Reserves. The first to be designated was the Yellowstone
Timberland Reserve. That designation was quickly followed by several
more. The Department of the Interior supervised the Reserves. (West

-1992:30))

In response to outcries from residents of towns in southeastern Utah over
polluted streams, the Territorial Legislature passed a law in 1892 pro-
hibiting sheep from watersheds within seven miles of a city. (Peterson
1975:122.)

Nationally, roughly 40 million acres were now set aside as Forest Reserves.
To clarify their defined purpose, Congress passed the forest management
or “Organic Act” in 1897. The Act identified that the primary purposes of
the Reserves were to provide favorable conditions for waterflow and a con-
tinuous supply of timber for the nation. (West 1992:30.)

Early administration of the Reserves was based on a hierarchy of state
superintendents, Reserve supervisors and rangers who managed districts
within the Reserves. The rangers were the key to successful Reserve
management. The word ranger was derived from the French word “rover”
First introduced in 1066, rovers were game wardens of Royal Forests.
Reserve rangers, however, were expected to protect wildlife and administer
many other resources. (West 1992:31.)

In 1900, La Sal Mountain miners met to pass resolutions protesting “the
encroachment upon mineral lands by those seeking to use land for graz-
ing” (Grand Valley Times, September 7, 1900, as cited in Peterson 1975:117)

Continuing problems over polluted water led residents of Monticello to re-
quest a ruling on the Territory’s 1892 grazing and city watershed law. The
attorney general ruled that grazing within 7 miles of a town constituted a
misdemeanor. To be classified as a town, there needed to be three
families, a post office and a school. (Peterson 1975:122.)

Dr. Foster R. Kennar attributed an outbreak of typhoid fever in Sanpete
Valley in the late 1890's to culinary water contaminated by decaying
animal carcasses lying in Forest streams. In 1902, Sanpete Valley citizens
petitioned the federal government to establish a Forest Reserve above
Manti. (Haymond 1972:10-11.)

Monticello turned to the Interior Department for help in protecting the
watersheds from continued pollution. (Peterson 1975:123.)
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Albert Potter, head of the Grazing Division of the Department of Forestry,

warned that unless overgrazing was stopped, the watershed above Manti
and Ephraim would be irreparably harmed.

In response to petitions from Sanpete Valley citizens, approximately 8,800
acres in Manti Canyon were withdrawn from entry and grazing in March
1902. Despite opposition from stockmen, Nephi Otteson was hired in 1902
to ride the Reserve and enforce the closure. (Haymond 1972:11.)

Nationally, efforts to conserve timber.and rangeland resources were
strengthened with the adoption of The Forest Reserve Manual in 1902. It
regulated timber use and grazing on all Forest Reserves. Enforcement of r
grazing regulations was to be a constant challenge for Forest Reserve Separating sheep,
rangers who among other things according to one recruitment poster were Foae ok Al roenr, 100
expected to “build trails, ride all day and night, pack, shoot, and fight fire

wlthout losing their heads” (West 1992:31-32.)

Spurred on by Potter’s report, George Sutherland, a United States Con- 1859
gressman and a “Republican of some political stature both in Utah and

Washington, DC.” led a move to create a Forest Reserve in the mountains

above the Sanpete and Castle Valleys. On May 29, 1903, President

Theodore Roosevelt signed the official proclamation creating the Manti

Forest Reserve. (Haymond 1972:16-18.)

Robert R. V. Reynolds and R. B. Wilson inspected the La Sal and Abajo

‘Mountain regions pursuant to their establishment as Forest Reserves and
observed deteriorating grazing and watershed conditions. With the excep-
tion of the miners, they found that very few local citizens were en-
thusiastic about the prospect of a Forest Reserve. However, both Reynolds
and Wilson recommended that Forest Reserves be established. While the
mood regarding establishment of the Reserves was almost laconic, the
Grand Valley Times expressed optimism about the benefits of federal
management of the mountains’ watersheds, timber supply and range
resources. (Peterson' 1975:123-124.)

Jurisdiction of the existing Reserves was transferred to
the Department of Agriculture when the Transfer Act
was passed. A few months later, Gifford Pinchot, Chief
of the Forest Service, imposed grazing fees and a use
by permit system. In addition, permits were only
issued to local residents; roving bands with no home
ranch were excluded. (Joel Frandsen's personal com-
munication, 1994.) Accustomed to free use, ranchers
strongly protested. The institution of grazing fees and
livestock use by a permit system, coupled with Presi-
dent Theodore Roosevelt's addition of 100 million acres
to the Forest Reserve system were the source of most
major attacks against the Forest Service for the next
50 years. (Roth 1980:21 as cited in West 1992:39.)

Early Supervisor and Rangers of the Manti National Forest.
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Manti flood, 1898

Between 1904 and 1919, the number of permitted sheep on the Manti
Forest was reduced from nearly 300,000 to 140,000. (Haymond 1972:85.) In
a similar time period, the number of permitted sheep in the La Sal Forest
was reduced from 84,000 in 1907 to less than 30,000 in 1920. (Peterson
1975:186-188.)

1906 On January 18, 1906, President Roosevelt added by Proclamation over
190,000 acres of land to the north end of the Manti Forest Reserve. This
encompassed most of the land currently in the National Forest from ap-
proximately Fairview Canyon to Spanish Fork Canyon. This action was
welcomed by many Fairview residents who wished to see the watershed
and timberlands protected. (Haymond 1972:32.)

One week later on January 25, 1906, President Roosevelt signed a Pro-
clamation designating 158,000 acres of the La Sal Mountains as a Forest
Reserve.

In February, President Roosevelt signed a Proclamation creating the Mon-
ticello Forest Reserve. By 1908, the National Forest Reserve system includ-
ed 150 million acres throughout the United States.

By an act of Congress, the names of the Forest Reserves were changed to
National Forests.

A Presidential Executive Order combined the La Sal and Monticello
Forests into the La Sal National Forest.

Seven years after grazing was halted in Manti Canyon, RV. Reynolds
reported there had been no flooding; however, Reynolds noted severe
flooding in Ephraim and Sixmile Canyons. These areas had been
overgrazed between 1882 and 1902 and grazing continued there. The
Forest Service, after petitions from stockmen, permitted cattle and horses
to graze in Manti Canyon at the rate of one head for each 30 acres.

While the drastic grazing restrictions in Manti Canyon proved successful,
the causes of continued flooding throughout the West were still hotly
debated. Furthermore, effective methods for controlling floods were poorly
developed and understood. Because the livelihoods of so many rural
western towns were at stake, scientific study clearly was needed.
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In 1911, an area in Ephraim Canyon was selected as the site for a Forest
Service range and watershed research station. First named the Utah
Experiment Station, it was subsequently referred to as the Great Basin
Experiment Station, the Great Basin Branch Station and the Great Basin
Research Center, but it was most commonly called the Great Basin Sta-
tion, The facility became the training ground for numerous prominent
range and watershed researchers and other natural resource professionals,
as well as serving as a field station for numerous pioneering studies. (Keck
1972))

These studies brought the nation’s first, true range scientists into the
region. The Station became a focal point for studies on range restoration,
plant vigor, poisonous plants, revegetation, the impacts of grazing on ero-
sion and runoff, artificial seeding, plant nutrition, rodent damage, and
silviculture. Albert Antrei rightly claims that such “Spearmint Station”
men as “Arthur W. Sampson, A. Perry Plummer, and ... Lincoln Ellison
deserve the title of pioneer as much as the first Sanpete Valley settlers in
1849 (Geary 1992:19.) In no small way, these researchers and their studies
led the way for the Wasatch Plateau’s slow and difficult recovery.

Starting in 1912 and lasting until 1922, small groups of elk were introduc-
ed into the Manti Forest from the Yellowstone area. (Olsen 1945:72.)

By Presidential Proclamation, ‘58,000 acres in the Sanpitch Mountain area
were transferred from the Nebo National Forest to the Manti National
Forest. (Haymond 1972:204.)

Between 1920 and 1940, the number of deer and elk increased dramatical-
ly according to some accounts. (Reed Christensen’s personal communica-
tion, 1994). Some assert that the dramatic~increases in elk and deer
essentially negated the improved range conditions from reductions in
livestock numbers. (Haymond 1972:210.)

By Presidential Proclamation, the Sanpitch Mountains (formerly part of
the Nebo National Forest) were assigned to the newly renamed Uinta Na-
tional Forest for administration. (Haymond 1972:205.)

With the onset of the Great Depression, President Franklin D. Roosevelt
formed the Civilian Conservation Corps (CCC). Several CCC camps were
set up on the Forest and young men built trails, ranger stations, fences,
reservoirs and worked on a variety of range and timber improvement pro-
jects on the Forest. (Haymond 1972:176-178.)
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1920-1940

1923

CCC workers, mouth of
Manti Canyon, about 1937,




g

During discussions of a major structural reorganization, the Supervisor’s Of
fice at Moab was closed and administration of the La Sal Forest was tem-
porarily transferred to the Uinta National Forest. One option considered was
to combine the La Sal with Colorado Forests, all to be administered from
Colorado. However, in keeping with the tradition of having Forest adminis-
tration closely tied with “on-the-ground” resources and local users, it was
decided to have the La Sal administered from within the State of Utah.

The Manti and La Sal Forests were consoli-
dated into the Manti-La Sal National Forest.
After much debate and discussion, the Super-
visor's Office was relocated in Price. At that
time, Price had a population of 7,000, a large
mining industry, and a growing timber in-
dustry (to support the mines). More centrally
located than Ephraim or Moab, Price was
selected for both practical and political rea-
sons. (Peterson 1975:240-242.) For a very brief
period, it was called the Manti Forest. After
protests from Moab citizens, the name La Sal

Marriage ceremony uniting people of
to one forest in 1949.

1923

X heaR L
Range monitoring workshop
on Elks Knoll, 1991

Manti and La Sal National Forests was attached to the IIBW']}' mergcd Forests.

In the early 1950%, grazing was prohibited on Forest watersheds above the
town of Blanding which reduced the risk of contaminated culinary water.
Some trenching, furrowing and seeding were initiated within the upper
basins of Johnson and Recapture Creeks to prevent soil erosion. (Julian
Thomas' personal communication, 1994).

Responding to recurring and damaging floods, Congress passed the Water-
shed Protection and Flood Prevention Act (P.L. 566). This provided funding
to contour trench the Mt. Pleasdant watershed. This treatment was later ex-
tended to about 35,000 acres of the Manti-La Sal National Forest. Reduced
flooding, cleaner water and protection of downstream communities was and
is a direct result of the Act and associated treatments. (Dennis Kelly, per-
sonal communication, 1993.)

R.E. McArdle, Chief of the Forest Service, designated Elk Knoll at the head
of Manti Canyon as a Natural Area. This became the first Natural Area to

be established within the Intermountain Region. It later was referred to as a
Research Natural Area. -
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Resource conservation on National Forests included a variety of activities not [ 1960 |

formally mandated until passage of the Multiple Use-Sustained Yield Act of
1960. The Act directed the Forest Service to give equal consideration to out-
door recreation, range, timber, water, wildlife and fish resources and to
manage them on a sustained-yield basis. (West 1992:71.) The Act was declared
to be supplemental to, but not in conflict with the original purposes for
which the National Forests were established in the Organic Act of 1897

In the late 1950's, a new method of range analysis was adopted in the Inter-
mountain Region and grazing allotments were prioritized and inventoried. As
inventories were completed, actions were taken to balance livestock use with
the carrying capacity of each allotment. Controversies and appeals developed.
Gradually, most stocking levels were adjusted and many range improvements
were initiated which aided in better management and control of livestock.

The writing of multiple use management plans was started in the late 1950's.
Subregional multiple use guides were finalized in 1961 and incorporated in
multiple use plans for each Ranger District. The plans integrated various
forest and resource uses by zone and provided a longer term perspective for
management. .

Several large range-improvement projects, some involving mechanical removal
of pinyons and junipers and reseeding of grasses and forbs to enhance winter
forage for deer, were undertaken in the 1960’s.

In the early 1960’s, District Rangers were directed to use interdisciplinary
teams to prepare multiple use survey reports before undertaking activities
that might have significant effects on the environment. These voluntary - R -
reports were forerunners of environmental analysis documents required by Pinyon-juniper treatment, 1973, Moab.
the National Environmental Policy Act. (Reed Christensen's personal com-

munication, 1993.)

From 1963 to the early 1970s, extensive trenching, furrowing and reseeding'

activities were undertaken in the Ferron Creek watershed when federal funds
became available through the Small Watersheds Act of 1955 (P.L. 566). Using
these funds, Millsite Reservoir was constructed. Water from Millsite is used
by the City of Ferron and the Hunter Power Plant (coalfired, electricity-
generating). (Joel Frandsen and Dale Harber, personal communication, 1994.)

Passage of the Wilderness Act allowed Congress to establish wilderness areas
on National Forests, with public involvement and input. (West 1992:71.)

Joes Valley Reservoir was completed. The Reservoir provided downstream
users a reliable source of irrigation water.

: Horse Pasture Canyon,
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Mexican spotted owl, Monticello RD,

As part of the Joes Valley Project, several small irrigation reservoirs were
stabilized by the Bureau of Reclamation and their use converted to main-
taining a permanent fishery. Irrigation water rights were transferred to
Joes Valley Reservoir. (Joel Frandsen's personal communication, 1994.)

During the 1960’s, the Monticello Ranger District initiated efforts to
harvest overmature ponderosa pine stands susceptible to insect infestation.
Mountain pine beetle activity was increasing at alarming rates. Approx-
imately 150 million board feet of timber was harvested by the early 1970's.
(John Vasten's personal communication, 1994.)

Allowing both cattle and sheep to graze the same allotments (referred to
as common use) was discontinued in the 1960’s. Cessation of common use
allowed better documentation of impacts to range resources by specific
classes of livestock. (Karl Haaser and Vaughn Francis, personal com-
munication, 1993.)

Passage of the National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA) fostered public
involvement in managing the National Forests. It provided greater con-
sideration for environmental resources and the social and economic well-
being of the American public, as well as allowing the public to file
lawsuits against the agency for noncompliance. (West 1992:71.)

A Forest Servicewide roadless area review (RARE I) was undertaken by
the Forest Service for the purpose of identifying lands suitable for designa-
tion as wilderness.

In the 1970’s, laboratory research and analysis of field studies at the Great
Basin Research Station were gradually transferred to other locations in
Ogden and Provo where the Forest Service had watershed, range and
timber research facilities. While field 'studies continued on Research Sta-
tion lands, housing and laboratory facilities were gradually phased out.

The federal government was given a leading role in protecting threatened
and endangered plant and animal species when Congress passed the En-
dangered Species Act.
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The five Ranger Districts in the Manti Division were consolidated into
three. Offices in Castle Dale, Mount Pleasant and Manti were closed and
a District Office was added in Price. District boundaries were adjusted on
larger watershed units. The Sanpitch Mountains were administered by the
Nebo National Forest until 1913, by the Manti National Forest from 1913 to
1923, by the Uinta National Forest from 1923 to 1974 and was returned to
the Manti-La Sal National Forest in 1974 for administrative jurisdiction.
From 1974 on, the Sanpete District included river drainage systems of the
Sanpitch River and other drainages in the Sanpitch Mountains. The
Ferron District has included the Muddy, Ferron, Straight Canyon and other
small drainage systems; and the Price District has included portions of the
Price, Huntington and Spanish Fork drainage basins.

Passage of the Forest and Rangeland Renewable Resources Planning Act
(RPA) in 1974 strengthened the goals of the Multiple Use-Sustained Yield
Act by requiring inventories of resources. (West 1992:71.)

In June, a major landslide blocked Manti Canyon. The possibility of a
break in the unstable “natural dam” presented a significant flood threat
for the community of Manti. The slide started to stabilize in 1978. (Joel
Frandsen’s personal communication, 1994).

The Forest completed and began implementing the Monticello District’s en-
vironmental impact statement and land use plan. This was the first
District-wide land use plan to be developed on the Forest.

Appeals over timber management policies especially clearcutting in
Montana and West Virginia National Forests raised serious questions about
harvesting practices as interpreted in the Organic Act of 1897. The Na-
tional Forest Management Act (NFMA) passed in 1976 clarified the 1897
Act and placed major emphasis upon the development of management
plans for each National Forest and proposals for the management of each
type of resource.

NFMA made significant changes in the way the Forest Service had tradi-
tionally done business. Forest officers frequently complained about the in-
creasing difficulty of doing on-the-ground management when so much time
had to be spent doing planning from the confines of their offices. Despite
the frustrations and immense barriers presented by NFMA, each Forest in
the Intermountain Region completed land management plans. (Alexander
1987:225-226.)

The second roadless area review (RARE II) was initiated and ad-
ministrative recommendations were made to include, exclude or conduct
further study of specific areas as designated Wildernesses. During this
review, the Dark Canyon area was recommended for Wilderness status.
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The Electric Lake Dam was completed. In conjunction with Utah Power
and Light's Huntington Power Plant, Electric Lake Dam regulates
waterflows and aids greatly in maintaining a blue ribbon trout fishery in
Huntington Creek.

The Ferron-Price Districts Environmental Impact Statement and Land Use
Management Plan were completed, addressing management of all Colorado
River drainages in the Manti Division. This was the second land use plan
completed on the Forest that addressed a wide variety of resources,

Numerous landslides were triggered by heavy winter snows in the moun-
tains and rapidly rising spring temperatures. The most extensive were
slides in Twelve Mile Canyon and an area near Thistle which dammed
part of Spanish Fork Canyon. The Thistle slide backed up a large lake
flooding portions of Utah Highways 6 and 89 and the Denver and Rio
Grande Railroad. Transportation between Price and Provo was rerouted
for nearly a year.

Land movements and mudflows seriously altered vegetation on 5,700 acres
throughout the Manti Division. About 167 miles of stream channel were
scoured, and aquatic and riparian habitats were lost. Fisheries were
destroyed in 70 miles of stream and over 113 miles of road were lost.
(Manti-La Sal National Forest Land and Resource Management Plan
1986:11-8.)

Congress passed the Utah Wilderness Act which added the Dark Canyon
in the Monticello Ranger District to the national Wilderness system. Other
areas previously identified and considered as Wildernesses were returned
to multiple-use status.

The Manti-La Sal National Forest completed its first Forestwide En-
vironmental Impact Statement and Land and Resource Management Plan
with the involvement of many members of the public. The Plan sets both
short- and long-term objectives for management of the Forest and its varied
resources.

The Forest decided to proceed with a plan to gupplement the existing elk
herd by transplanting 150 head in the Monticello Ranger District. The
decision was appealed, litigated and then implemented.

The Chief of the Forest Service designated as Research Natural Areas the
Nelson Mountain area in the Ferron Ranger District and an area among
the high peaks of Mount Peale in the Moab Ranger District.
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The Salt Lake Tribune reported that sediment loads between 1963 (when
the Glen Canyon Dam was constructed) and 1989 were less than half of
what was anticipated. The Bureau of Reclamation attributes this to “land
use controls such as grazing restrictions, seeding programs” and upstream
water storage features. The Bureau's study stated that “the records showed
that most decreases in sediment occurred before 1963, an indication of the
impact of rangeland management practices on decreasing erosion rates.’
(Salt Lake Tribune, July 8, 1989:4B)

The Chief of the Forest Service designated Cliff Dwellers Pasture, on the
Monticello Ranger District, as a Research Natural Area because of its
unique, archeological and plant community values which existed because
the area had been virtually ungrazed for nearly 50 years.

A spruce beetle population greatly expanded and reached epidemic propor-
tions in the southern portion of Manti Division. Englemann spruce were
infested within a 30,000-acre area.

On June 4, 1992, the Chief announced that the Forest Service would begin
implementing an ecological approach to management of the National
Forests and Grasslands. This approach meant that “the needs of the people
and environmental values [must be blended] in such a way that the Na-
tional Forests and Grasslands represent diverse, healthy, productive and
sustainable ecosystems” (USDA-Forest Service 1992.)

Since the the Great Basin Research Station was no longer used as a
research facility, the Forest Service and Snow College participated in
rehabilitating the deteriorating buildings and converting them for use as
an environmental education center. Past Station Directors, researchers and
Senator Orrin Hatch attended the dedication ceremony of the Great Basin
Environmental Education Center.
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